
 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

Lisa Antrobus, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
01803 207087 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk 

www.torbay.gov.uk  

(1) 

 

Wednesday, 13 December 2017 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

A meeting of Licensing Sub-Committee will be held on 
 

Thursday, 21 December 2017 
 

commencing at 9.30 am 
 

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay, TQ1 3DR 

 
 

Members of the Committee 

Councillor Doggett 

Councillor Stocks 

 

Councillor Thomas (J) 

 

 

 

A prosperous and healthy Torbay 

mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/


(2) 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Election of Chairman/woman  
 To elect a Chairman/woman for the meeting. 

 
2.   Apologies  
 To receive apologies for absence, including notifications of any 

changes to the membership of the Committee. 
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 4 - 13) 
 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of a Sub-

Committee held on 2 November 2017 and 9 November 2017. 
 

4.   Declarations of interests 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect 
of items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance 
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 
 

5.   Urgent items  
 To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
6.   Review of a Torbay Council Drivers’ Licence (Pages 14 - 40) 
 To consider a report that seeks a Review of a Torbay Council 

Drivers’ Licence. 
 

7.   Consideration of an Application for a New Dual Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Drivers’ Licence 

(Pages 41 - 48) 

 To consider an application for a new Dual Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Drivers’ Licence. 
 

   



(3) 

8.   Torquay Squash and Leisure Club, 78 Barton Road, Torquay 
TQ2 7NS 

(Pages 49 - 78) 

 To consider an application for a Variation to a Premises Licence in 
respect of Torquay Squash and Leisure Club, 78 Barton Road, 
Torquay. 
 

9.   The Cabin, 13 Lucius Street, Torquay TQ2 5UW (Pages 79 - 98) 
 To consider an application for a Premises Licence in respect of The 

Cabin, 13 Lucius Street, Torquay. 
 



 
 
 

Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

2 November 2017 
 

-: Present :- 
 
 

Councillors Doggett, Thomas (D) and Thomas (J) 
 
 

 
60. Election of Chairman/woman  

 
Councillor Thomas (J) was elected as Chairman for the meeting. 
 

61. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meetings of the Sub-Committee held on 14 September 2017 
and 20 October 2017 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman. 
 

62. Gio's Bar, 18 Esplanade Road, Paignton  
 
Members considered a report on an application for a Premises Licence in respect of 
Gio’s Bar, 18 Esplanade Road, Paignton. 
 
Written Representations received from: 
 

Name Details Date of Representation 

Devon & 
Cornwall 
Police 

Representation in relation to 
licensing objectives of ‘The 
Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder’ and recommendations 
on conditions for the licence if 
granted. 
 

Dated 6 October 2017 

Public 
Protection 
Officer 

Representation objecting to the 
application in relation to 
licensing objective ‘Prevention 
of Public Nuisance’. 
 

Dated 11 October 2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the grounds of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’, ‘Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder’ and ‘Public 
Safety’. 

Undated 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Licensing Sub-Committee Thursday, 2 November 2017 
 

 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the ground of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’. 
 

Received on 21 
September 2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the ground of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’. 
 

Received on 25 
September 2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the ground of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’. 
 

Dated 25 September 
2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the ground of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’. 
 

Dated 5 October 2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the ground of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’. 
 

Dated 24 September 
2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the ground of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’. 
 

Dated 3 October 2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the grounds of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’. 
 

Undated 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the ground of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’. 
 

Received 6 October 
2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the ground of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’. 
 

Dated 20 September 
2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation objecting to the 
application on the ground of 
‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’ and ‘The Prevention 
of Crime and Disorder’. 

Dated 6 October 2017 

Page 5



Licensing Sub-Committee Thursday, 2 November 2017 
 

 

 
Prior to the commencement of the hearing, it was noted that application had not 
been duly signed by an authorised person of the company, nor the required Notice 
stating that the Designated Premises Supervisor or Manager present, were 
nominated to speak on their behalf. 
 
There was a delay to the hearing start time to allow a representative of the 
company to attend the hearing. 
 
Oral Representations received from: 
 

Name Details 

Applicants The Applicants outlined the application and responded to 
Members questions.  During their oral representation, the 
Applicants proposed changes to their application to 
introduce a noise limiter, the licence to be until 03.00 hours 
in one area of the premises with a limit to 80 people in this 
area and the licence for the remainder of the premises to be 
until 01.00 hours. 
 

Representative 
from Devon & 
Cornwall Police  

The Representative from Devon & Cornwall Police outlined 
the Police’s representation and responded to Members’ 
questions. 
 

Public 
Protection 
Officer 
 

The Public Protection Officer outlined his representation 
and responded to Members’ questions. 

 
In light of the Applicants proposed changes and the subsequent oral representation 
from the Responsible Authorities which highlighted their concerns in respect of the 
lack of notification or opportunity to consider the impact of these changes, the 
Chairman adjourned the meeting to determine whether the hearing should be 
adjourned to a later date to enable the Responsible Authorities sufficient time to 
consider and respond to that now being put forward by the Applicants. 
 
Decision: 
 

That the application for a premises licence in respect of Gio’s Bar, 18 Esplanade 
Road, Paignton shall be deferred until 23 November 2017.   
 
Reasons for decision: 
 
Following significant proposed changes to the application by the Applicants and the 
subsequent oral representations from the Responsible Authorities, Members 
resolved that they were unable at this stage to make an informed determination on 
this application which ensured that the Licensing Objectives would be promoted. 
 
At this juncture the meeting was adjourned until Thursday 23 November 2017. 
 

Page 6



Licensing Sub-Committee Thursday, 2 November 2017 
 

 

Members of the public who attended the hearing were thanked for their attendance 
and assured of the purpose for this adjournment.  
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 7



 
 

Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

9 November 2017 
 

-: Present :- 
 

Councillors Ellery, Pentney, Thomas (J) and Doggett 
 

 

 

 
63. Election of Chairman/woman  

 
Councillor Thomas (J) was elected as Chairman for the meeting. 
 

64. Apologies  
 
It was reported that the membership for item 68 had been amended for this 
meeting by including Councillor Doggett instead of Councillor Ellery. 
 

65. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 27 July 2017 were 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

66. Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
Prior to consideration of the item in Minute 67 the press and public were formally 
excluded from the meeting on the grounds that the item involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Scheduled 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 

67. The Globe Inn, 131 Winner Street, Paignton, Devon, TQ3 3BP  
 
Members considered a report on an application for a review of a Premises Licence 
in respect of The Globe Inn, 131 Winner Street, Paignton. 
  
Written Representations received from: 
 

Name Details Date of Representation 

Applicant Application setting out reasons 
for the application for review. 

17 October 2017 

Public 
Protection 

Representation providing a 
history of the Premises and 
proposing conditions should the 
Licence be modified. 

31 October 2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation supporting the 
application for Review. 

1 November 2017 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



Licensing Sub-Committee   Thursday, 9 November 2017 
 

 

Additional Information: 
 
At the Hearing, the Respondent requested an extension to the normal allowance 
of 10 minutes to present the application.  The Chairman agreed to a total of 15 
minutes. 
 
Oral Representations received from: 
 

Name Details 

Applicant The Applicant presented their application and responded to 
Members questions. 

Public 
Protection 

The Public Protection Officer outlined their representation 
and responded to Members questions. 

Respondent The Respondent provided details of the steps they would be 
taking to address the concerns raised by the Applicant and 
Public Protection Officer and responded to Members 
questions. 

 
Decision 
 
That the Premises Licence in respect of The Globe Inn, 131 Winner Street, 
Paignton shall be suspended until the 31 January 2018 and will be subject 
thereafter to the following additional conditions: 
 
i)       The exemptions under the Live Music Act 2012 shall be repealed in respect 

of these premises; 
 
ii)      The Premises Licence Holder shall submit by 27 November 2017 a new plan 

of the premises which also clearly defines the licensable outside area, as 
proposed and agreed; 

 
iii)     All amplified live and recorded music shall be played through a noise limiter; 
 
iv)    The noise limiter shall be set at a level agreed by the Licensing Authority; 
 
v)      The noise limiter shall be kept in a tamper proof container in a location where 

there is no public access; 
 
vi)     A secure gate shall be in place to prevent unauthorised access to the 

premises licensable outside area; 
 
vii)    The licensable outside area shall cease to be used by patrons after 8pm; and 
 
viii)   A CCTV camera shall be located to monitor the outside licensable area by 

staff from within the premises main bar area. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Having carefully considered all the written and oral Representations, Members 
resolved to suspend the Premises Licence with the agreement of the 
Respondents, as they were satisfied in the circumstances that the suspension was 

Page 9



Licensing Sub-Committee   Thursday, 9 November 2017 
 

 

appropriate and proportionate, given the long and troubled history of this 
premises.   
 
In doing so, Members were confident that the suspension would allow the 
Premises Licence Holders sufficient time to refurbish the premises, maximise on 
the opportunity for a cultural change and to allow the premises time to distance 
itself from its own history which ensured that the premises future operation would 
promote the Licensing Objectives. 
 
Members determined that the additional conditions should alleviate the concerns 
raised by the Responsible Authorities and those of nearby residents, who lives in 
their opinion on the evidence before them, had been detrimentally effected by the 
historical operation of these premises. 
 
In concluding, Members were reassured by the Premises Licence Holders 
proposed future management and operation of this premise, given their 
considerable experience in operating similar challenging premises, their 
commitment to relocate from out of area and to financially invest further in to the 
premises to ensure that the premises would be managed in a responsible manner 
going forward. 
 

68. Adjournment  
 
At this juncture the meeting was adjourned until 2.00 pm on Thursday 9 November 
2017. 
 

69. Election of Chairman/woman  
 
Councillor Doggett was elected as Chairman for the adjourned meeting. 
 

70. Apologies  
 
It was reported that the membership for item 71 had been amended for this 
meeting by including Councillor Doggett instead of Councillor Thomas (J). 
 

71. Torbay Court Hotel, Steartfield Road, Paignton  
 
Members considered a report on an application for review of a Premises Licence 
in respect of Torbay Court Hotel, Steartfield Road, Paignton. 
  
Written Representations received from: 
 

Name Details Date of Representation 

Applicant Application for a Review of a 
Premises Licence. 

14 September 2017 

Public 
Protection 

Representation in support of the 
application for a Review of the 
Premises Licence. 

12 October 2017 

Member of the 
Public 

Representation in support of the 
application for a Review of the 
Premises Licence. 

Undated 

Page 10



Licensing Sub-Committee   Thursday, 9 November 2017 
 

 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Prior to the Hearing the Respondent’s Representative provided additional 
information which was circulated to Members and Interested Parties.   
 
During the hearing it became apparent that the applicant required an extension of 
time for their oral submissions, the extension of time was granted to all Interested 
Parties. 
 
Oral Representations received from: 
 

Name Details 

Applicant The Applicant outlined the reasons for the application for a 
Review of a Premises Licence and responded to Members 
questions. 

Public 
Protection 
Officer 

The Public Protection Officer outlined his support for the 
application for a Review of a Premises Licence, played 
some audio clips recorded via the ‘noise app’ and 
responded to Members questions. 

Member of the 
Public 

A Member of the Public outlined their support for the 
application for a Review of a Premises Licence and 
responded to Members questions. 

Respondents 
Solicitor 

The Respondents Solicitor asked questions of the 
Designated Premises Supervisor. 

 
Decision 
 
That the Premises Licence in respect of The Torbay Hotel, Steartfield Road, 
Paignton be amended to include the following additional conditions: 
 
i)       The exemptions under the Live Music Act 2012 shall be repealed in respect 

of these premises; 
 
ii)      All amplified live and recorded music shall be played through a noise limiter; 
 
iii)     The noise limiter shall be set at a level agreed by the Licensing Authority; 
 
iv)     The noise limiter shall be kept in a tamper proof container in a location where 

there is no public access; 
 
v)      Any adjustments to the noise limiters level shall only be made in consultation 

with the Licensing Authority; 
 
vi)     The premises shall have an in-house PA system or something similar to 

ensure that the agreed level set on the noise limiter is maintained; 
 
vii)    All entertainers and performers using amplified equipment must use the 

premises in-house PA system or something similar to ensure that the agreed 
levels set on the noise limiter are maintained; 

 

Page 11



Licensing Sub-Committee   Thursday, 9 November 2017 
 

 

viii)   A suitable and sufficient ventilation system must be installed and maintained 
in the areas of the premises where regulated entertainment takes place by 31 
May 2018; 

 
ix)     There shall be no more than 6 persons associated with the Premises being 

permitted in the designated smoking area after 8 pm; 
 
x)      Suitable and sufficient size signage agreed by the Licensing Authority shall 

be displayed in prominent positions within the Premises and its outside areas 
to remind guests to respect neighbours and keep noise to a minimum. 

 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Having carefully considered all the written and oral Representations, Members 
resolved to modify the Premises Licence having been satisfied that the premises 
operations were undermining the Licensing Objective ‘The Prevention of Public 
Nuisance’ and causing a nuisance to nearby residents.   
 
In coming to that decision, Members were alarmed by the Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS) and the Premises Licence Holder’s (PLH) Legal Representative 
impervious response to the concerns raised over a number of years by members 
of the public who live in the immediate vicinity and that of the Licensing Authority’s 
Public Protection Officer, regardless of the written Representations and oral 
submissions of those present at the hearing and being presented with audio clips 
played by the Public Protection Officer of which the majority were taken from 
within the homes of three nearby residents.  
 

In listening to these clips, Members noted that  they could clearly hear exact 
numbers being called by a bingo caller and words of songs being played from 
within the premises and therefore in their opinion, determined that the noise 
emanating from these premises was having a detrimental impact on nearby 
residents so as to cause them a nuisance. 
 
Despite being questioned in regards to this evidence and its effects, Members 
were seriously concerned as to the DPS’s future ability to operate these premises 
in a responsible manner which ensured that the Licensing Objective, ‘The 
Prevention of Public Nuisance’ was promoted, given her continued opinion that 
there was no public nuisance and even if there was, she was not aware of this. 
This Members determined fell well below the standard reasonably expected by 
them of someone in a position of such authority. 
 
Members resolved that the DPS’s attitude and approach to the noise complaints 
was dismissive and irresponsible and on the evidence before them, were satisfied 
that the premises were aware of the historical and ongoing noise outbreak from 
the premises and its effects but had chosen not to address these, due to the 
perceived cost implications.  
 
By the DPS’s own written and oral submission, residents’ concerns had been 
brought to her attention and as a result, she convened a meeting on the 2nd July 
2016 in an attempt to resolve these. Members further noted the number of times 
complaints were raised directly with the premises and the prolonged period of this 

Page 12



Licensing Sub-Committee   Thursday, 9 November 2017 
 

 

by the person who had called the Review and others and that of the Licensing 
Authority’s Public Protection Officer who had met with the DPS on a number of 
occasions following their receipt of noise complaints from nearby residents and 
had given advice and warnings to the premises in respect of noise outbreak. This 
was in addition to the findings of the Private Investigators report which was 
commissioned by the PLH and clearly showed other residents in the adjoining 
roads who he had spoken to could hear noise emanating from these premises, 
although they had chosen not to complain. 
 
Notwithstanding that these premises were exempt under the Live Music Act 2012, 
Members noted the oral submission of the DPS that she was not aware of this and 
had continued to operate the premises in compliance with the conditions of the 
Premises Licence. This coupled with the premises written manual at point 6 under 
the heading ‘Advice and Guidance which states that ‘All windows and doors must 
be kept closed during all entertainment, regular sound checks around the outside 
of the building must be made to ensure no unacceptable noise outbreak and 
recorded should any action need be taken’ and  ‘During any events using a 
Temporary Event Notice sound checks must be carried out every hour and logged 
on the events log’, which too were submitted to have been complied with, resulted 
in Members determining that such action had not been undertaken effectively, if at 
all, given the evidence before them and the absence of sight of a record or events 
log. 
 
In noting that the DPS and the Premises Legal Representative agreed to all of the 
conditions put forward, except to that of installing a PA system or something of a 
similar nature, Members resolved that without such a condition, a noise limiter 
would be ineffective and noise nuisance would continue to emanate from these 
premises. In their opinion and experience, Members resolved that installing such a 
system where the premises was in such close proximity to nearby residents was 
an appropriate and proportionate condition to ensure that ‘The Prevention of 
Public Nuisance’ Licensing Objective would be promoted, given the evidence 
before them. 
 
In line with its Statement of Principles, Members gave careful consideration to 
removing and/or limiting licensable activities at these premises due to the close 
proximity of residential premises and the removal of the DPS but resolved on this 
occasion that the proposed conditions which were agreed in majority should 
alleviate the concerns raised by members of the public and the Responsible 
Authority. 
 

Should issues of concern continue to arise as a result of this decision, Members 
would welcome a further Review of this Premises Licence so that a decision may 
be taken to address these. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman/woman 

Page 13



  

 
 

Report No:  Public Agenda Item: NO 
   
Title: Review of a Torbay Council Drivers’ Licence  
  
Wards 
Affected: 

All 

  
To: Licensing Sub-Committee On: 21st December 2017 
    
Key Decision: No   
   
Change to 
Budget: 

No Change to Policy 
Framework: 

No 
 

   

Contact Officer: Gary O’Shea 
 Telephone: 01803 207631 
  E.mail: gary.oshea@torbay.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
1. What we are trying to achieve 
 
1.1 This report asks Members to consider a number of complaints and other 

information relating to the conduct of the holder of a dual Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire drivers licence and to determine on the facts laid before them, whether 
or not the licence holder continues to be regarded as a ‘fit and proper’ person to 
hold such a licence.  

 
2. Recommendation(s) for decision 
 
2.1 This matter must be determined on its individual merits and any supporting facts 

or testimony. Therefore, there is no recommendations. The options available to 
Members however, are highlighted in paragraph A3.1 of Annex 1 to this report. 

 
3. Key points and reasons for recommendations 
 
3.1 Under provision of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

(the 1976 Act), Torbay Council is the Licensing Authority in respect of Hackney 
Carriages, Private Hire Vehicles and their drivers within Torbay. 

 
3.2 Sections 51 and 59 of the 1976 Act in conjunction with section 46 of the Town 

Police Clauses Act 1847 make provision for the licensing of drivers and state that 
a district council shall not grant a licence to drive a Private Hire or Hackney 
Carriage vehicle unless they are satisfied that the driver is a ‘fit and proper’ person 
to hold a driver’s licence. 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6

mailto:gary.oshea@torbay.gov.uk


  

3.3 Section 51 (2) of the 1976 Act permits the Council to attach to the grant of a licence 
to drive a Private Hire vehicle ‘such conditions as they may consider reasonably 
necessary’. This provision extends to enabling the attachment of conditions on a 
dual licence as is issued in Torbay.  

 
3.4 There is no prescribed test for ‘fit and proper’ laid down in legislation and it is 

therefore left to the individual Licensing Authorities to assess drivers and 
applicants under their own criteria. However, there is a wide scope for such 
assessment and certain processes have evolved over time which have stood up 
to scrutiny in the Courts and are therefore commonly accepted practices amongst 
the majority of Licensing Authorities. 

 
3.5 Torbay has adopted a number of common practices for testing the ‘fit and proper’ 

status of drivers and applicants. These include, a group 2 standard of medical 
fitness, an enhanced Criminal Records Disclosure (DBS), a driving standards test 
(DSA), scrutiny of DVLA penalty points and a test of the knowledge of both the 
area and conditions pertaining specifically to Torbay and local licensing Policy. A 
recent addition to this is the requirement to test the right to live and work in the 
United Kingdom.  

 
3.6 Section 61 (1) of the 1976 Act states that a district council may suspend or revoke 

or refuse to renew the licence of a driver of a Hackney Carriage or a Private Hire 
vehicle on any of the following grounds:—  

 

(1) (a) that he has since the grant of the licence—  

(i)  been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency  

     violence; or 

(ii)   been convicted of an offence under or has failed to comply with 

       the provisions of the Act of 1847 or of this Part of this Act; or  

 (b)  any other reasonable cause.  

 

3.7 Section 61 (2) of the 1976 Act states: 

(2) (a) Where a district council suspend, revoke or refuse to renew any licence 

under this section they shall give to the driver notice of the grounds on 

which the licence has been suspended or revoked or on which they have 

refused to renew such licence within fourteen days of such suspension, 

revocation or refusal and the driver shall on demand return to the district 

council the driver’s badge issued to him… 

(b)  If any person without reasonable excuse contravenes the provisions of 

this section he shall be guilty of an offence and liable on summary 

conviction to a fine not exceeding level 1 on the standard scale. 

 

 

Page 15



  

3.8 Under Section 61 (2A) a suspension or revocation of a drivers’ licence takes 

effect at the end of a period of 21 days beginning with the day on which the 

notice is given to the driver. However, under section (2B) any suspension or 

revocation may take immediate effect if it is deemed to be necessary in the 

interests of public safety. In such circumstances the notice given to the driver 

notifying of the suspension or revocation must include a statement and 

explanation as to why section (2B) has been deemed necessary. 

 
3.9 This report follows receipt of a number of complaints relating to the alleged actions 

and demeanour of Mr Philip Johnston, who has been a licensed driver with this 
Authority since August 2004. The complaints are attached as Appendix 1 to this 
report and a transcript of an interview conducted with Mr Johnston on 23 October 
2017 where the allegations were discussed is attached at Appendix 2.   

 
3.10 An email exchange has taken place with Mr Johnston since the interview that was 

held on 23 October 2017, where he has agreed primarily to the written account of 
interview (save for minor alterations that have been included) by virtue of the fact 
that no other alterations were requested. A transcript of this email exchange has 
been attached for information at Appendix 3.  

 
3.11 There is a right of Appeal to the Magistrates’ Court as provided under section 61 

(3) of the 1976 Act against the Licensing Sub-Committee decision. Such an appeal 
must be lodged within 21 days from the date of a Notice following the decision. 

 
For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to the Supporting 
Information. 
 
Steve Cox 
Environmental Health Manager (Commercial) 

Page 16



  

Annex 1 - Supporting information  
 
A1. Introduction and history 
 
A1.1 Under provision of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

(the 1976 Act), Torbay Council is the Licensing Authority in respect of Hackney 
Carriages, Private Hire Vehicles and their drivers within Torbay. 

 
A1.2 Sections 51 (in respect of Private Hire drivers) and 59 (in respect of Hackney 

Carriage drivers) of the Act state that a district council shall not grant a licence to 
drive a Private Hire vehicle or Hackney Carriage unless they are satisfied that the 
driver is a ‘fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence’.  

 
A1.3 The test for ‘fit and proper’ as it applies in Torbay is outlined in paragraph 3.5 of 

the report. 
 
A1.4 Since January 2016, there have been a total of nine (9) complaints made against 

Mr Johnston. Whilst ten (10) matters are highlighted in the interview transcript at 
Appendix 2, one of them was a notification of an incident made by Mr Johnston 
himself and from which no complaint followed, it is not therefore, recorded as a 
complaint. Due to the content and number of complaints received and 
notwithstanding the fact that some of these are unsubstantiated, this matter has 
been referred to Members in order that consideration may be given as to whether 
Mr Johnston remains a ‘fit and proper’ person to be the holder of a drivers’ licence 
issued by this Authority. 

 
A1.6 The full complaints that have been received since the warnings as outlined in 

paragraph A1.5 (above) are attached as Appendix 1 and relate in the main to 
matters concerning Mr Johnston’s behaviour, comments he has made and 
complaints about his manner of driving. 

 
A1.7 Mr Johnston attended an interview at the Council offices, which took place on 23 

October 2017. The interview was conducted by Gary O’Shea, Principal Licensing 
Officer and Craig Noble, a Licensing Enforcement Officer. Nobody else was 
present, however, the full content of the meeting was transcribed and sent to Mr 
Johnston, who agreed subsequently that it is a true reflection of the discussion 
that took place. This is attached at Appendix 2.  

 
A1.8 Given the number of complaints and facts as outlined in Appendix 2, it is deemed 

appropriate that the relevance of these matters in relation to the ‘fit and proper’ 
status of Mr Johnston should be considered by Members of the Licensing Sub-
Committee.  

 
A1.9 Torbay Council’s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy states; 
 

In setting out its Policy, the Licensing Authority seeks to promote the following 
objectives: 

 The safety and health of drivers and the public; 

 Vehicle safety, comfort and access; 

 To prevent crime and disorder and to protect the public; 

 To encourage environmental sustainability. 
 

 

Page 17



  

Public safety is paramount, and this Licensing Authority seeks to ensure through 
its licensing regime that all taxi and private hire vehicles are fit for purpose and 
that their drivers and/or operators are fit and proper persons.  

 
A1.10 Torbay Council’s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy goes on to 

say;  
 

1 General Policy 
 

1.1 Each case will be decided on its own merits. 
 

1.2 The Licensing Authority has a duty to ensure, so far as possible, that 
applicants are ‘fit and proper’ persons to hold licences and in the absence 
of a judicially approved definition of “fit and proper”, the Licensing 
Authority use the test of: 
 
“Would the Officer charged with the ability to grant a licence allow their son 
or daughter, spouse or partner, mother or father, grandson or 
granddaughter, or any other person for whom they care, to get into a 
licensed vehicle with the applicant alone” 
 
The wording of this test originates from Button, J. T. H. (1999), Taxis – 
Licensing Law and Practice, Butterworths, London. 
 

1.3 The overriding consideration is the safety of the public. The Licensing 
Authority has a duty to ensure so far as possible that those licensed to 
drive hackney carriage and private hire vehicles are suitable persons to 
do so, that they are safe drivers with good driving records and adequate 
experience, sober, courteous, mentally and physically fit. An aspect of this 
is the extent to which previous convictions, including but not limited to 
convictions of dishonesty, sexual offences, traffic offences, violence and 
drugs, indicate that a person is not a ‘fit and proper’ person and would not 
take advantage of passengers or abuse or assault them. 
 

A1.11 There is a right of Appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the Licensing Sub-
Committee decision. Such an appeal must be lodged within 21 days from the date 
of a Notice following the decision. 

 
 
A2. Risk assessment of preferred option 
 
A2.1 Outline of significant key risks 
 
A2.1.1 Under current Policy and in full consideration of the overriding requirement to 

protect the safety of the travelling public, this is a matter that Officers consider 
best suited to determination by Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee. 

 
A2.1.2 There are risks both potentially to the public and to the Council if a key decision 

were to be taken without full consideration of the facts. By placing this matter 
before a Licensing Sub-Committee, such risks are reduced as full consideration 
may be given in an open and transparent manner of all relevant facts. 

 
 

Page 18



  

A3. Options 
 
A3.1 The options are: 
  

(i) to formally warn Mr Johnston and/or to add conditions to the scope 
of his Torbay Council Driver’s Licence; 

(ii) to suspend Mr Johnston’s Torbay Council Driver’s Licence, with or 
without immediate effect, as outlined in paragraph 3.8 of the report 
which may or may not include the addition of conditions to the scope 
of the licence as deemed appropriate;  

(iii) to revoke Mr Johnston’s Torbay Council Driver’s Licence with or 
without immediate effect as outlined in paragraph 3.8 of the report;  

(iv) to do nothing. 
 
A4. Summary of resource implications 
 
A4.1 There are some resource implications if there is an Appeal to the Magistrates’ 

Court. 
 
A5. What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and 

crime and disorder? 
 
A5.1 There are no environmental sustainability issues. Whilst this report brings a 

number of matters to Members’ of the Licensing Sub-Committees attention, there 
are no criminal convictions. In view of this, any crime and disorder impact is best 
assessed by the Licensing Sub-Committee having determined the facts. If any 
potential for crime and/or disorder on the balance of probability is deemed likely 
or possible, then this may lead Members to consider whether Mr Johnston meets 
the ‘fit and proper’ criteria. It is important to note however, this is not the only 
consideration.  

 
A6. Consultation and Customer Focus 
 
A6.1 There has been no public consultation on this matter and there is no requirement 

for the Licensing Sub-Committee to consult the public in this matter. 
 
A7. Are there any implications for other Business Units? 
 
A7.1 There are no implications for other business units. 
 
Documents available in members’ rooms 
 
None 
 

Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Complaints Received 
Appendix 2 – Transcript of Interview with Mr Johnston 
Appendix 3 – Email Exchange post interview 
 
Background Papers: 
The following documents/files were used to compile this report: 
Torbay Council’s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy 2016 
Documents supplied by the applicant, as referred to above. 

Page 19



Page 20

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



1 
 

Interview – 23 October 2017 – Philip Johnston – Driver Number LD 0107  
 

 
Present: 
Philip Johnston (Licensed Driver) - PJ 
Gary O’Shea (Principal Licensing Officer – Torbay Council) – GO 
Craig Noble (Licensing Enforcement Officer – Torbay Council) - CN 
 
 
GO advised PJ that the purpose of the meeting was to discuss a number of 
complaints that had been received over a period of time although in particular 
three complaints that have been received this year. The complaints listed 
dated back to January 2016, however, these were considered to have been 
dealt with at the time and were being referred to now only to illustrate what 
appears to be a pattern of complaints against PJ.  
 
Given the number and nature of the complaints, it was important that PJ was 
made aware of them and given opportunity to confirm or deny them and were 
applicable and appropriate to give explanation as to the content and 
circumstances of each complaint.  
 
On face value the number of complaints would appear to warrant an 
appearance at committee. Indeed 2 or 3 of them potentially on an individual 
basis leads GO to hold a view that committee may be the most appropriate 
course of action. However GO advised PJ that it is accepted that there are two 
sides to everything and that the purpose of the meeting is to hear any 
explanation and/or mitigation from PJ. On this basis GO stressed that no 
decisions have yet been made and only after the meeting would the matter be 
discussed/investigated further (as appropriate) and a decision made as to how 
the matters should be dealt with. 
 
GO explained that the Licensing Authority has a duty to safeguard the 
travelling public as whilst we are always mindful of the rights of drivers and 
their need to work, we have to consider the safety of the public as our 
overriding objective and in matters such as these consider the ‘fit and proper’ 
status of drivers should there be substance in the complaints.  
 
The purpose of this meeting was therefore to obtain any relevant account from 
PJ with a view to considering whether or not the matter should proceed to a 
Licensing Sub-Committee, or if not what if any other action should be taken.  
 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2



2 
 

The detail of the complaints was put to PJ as follows. The explanations given by 
PJ are printed in bold italics: 
 
Matters highlighted from 2016 but not discussed in order to illustrate the 
numbers of complaints received since January 2016: 
 

1) 5 January 2016 – Complaint re dangerous driving in Union Street and an 
altercation that followed on the Rank.  CCTV footage was unavailable 
and no evidence. Words of advice given and matter closed. 
 

2) 16 February 2016 – Complaint relating to Lewd comments from PJ to a 
female passenger, complaint denied, no evidence available and no 
further action taken. 

 
3) Three separate complaints in quick succession. Two from 25th April 2016 

and one from 28th April 2016. Complaints related to aggressive 
comments and behaviour. Matter dealt with by CN by way of informal 
warning letter sent on 11 May 2016. 

 
4) November 2016 – Complaint from Council Solicitor relating to abusive 

comments towards her following an incident over rights of way. Alleged 
by PJ that the Council Officer was the aggressor. No evidence 
independent available and no further action taken. 

 
 
Matters discussed in more detail from this year as part of the determination 
as to how to proceed following the latest complaints: 
 

5) Complaint as to excessive speed in a 30 MPH limit from a customer 
being conveyed in another licensed vehicle. Alleged that PJ overtook at 
around 60 MPH in a 30 MPH limit.  
 
In relation to this complaint it is accepted by the licensing authority that 
whilst the customer may have been able to say that the vehicle overtook 
at speed, they could not have any way of knowing at what speed. This 
initially would be a Police matter (if caught) and failing that it is not a 
matter for the licensing authority to deal with. Complaint not withheld. 

 
 
 

Page 29



3 
 

6) A complaint from a Police officer relating to an incident that occurred in 
April 2017.  
 
It is alleged that on 1 April 2017, the Police Officer, driving an unmarked 
vehicle, pulled out of Castle Road into Union Street joining stationary 
traffic. Due to the traffic the officer stopped in a hatched yellow box in 
front of PJ’s vehicle. The Officer alleges that PJ was not happy at this and 
drove forward in an aggressive manner stopping only a short distance 
from the Police vehicle. PJ is said to have gesticulated and pointed in an 
aggressive manner clearly not realising that the vehicle in front was 
occupied by a uniformed police officer. PJ’s vehicle was then stopped on 
Union Street and continued in his aggressive manner when asked to 
produce documentation. Words of advice were offered.  
 
GO asked PJ if he was aware of the incident and if so what he could tell 
us about it. In response PJ stated: 
 
The Police Officer only complained to the licensing authority once he 
knew that I had put a complaint in to the Police about him. The police 
have actually sent me a total of three letters of apology. 
 
The Officer pulled out in front of me onto a yellow hatched box, which 
is illegal. I pointed down towards the box to illustrate that he was 
stopped on the hatchings so as to point this out. The Officer then 
started to move forward and then brake for no apparent reason, 
stopping and starting as if trying to get me to go into the back of him. 
He then stopped me in Union Street and asked for my details, he was 
the one that was rude and taunting towards me. So shaken was I by 
this from a serving police Officer that I reported it to the Police and 
attended an interview upon my request to give my side.  
 
I was asked what I wanted the outcome to be and I said that I wanted 
something done about it due to the intimidation and at least wanted 
an apology. I asked them if they could view the CCTV footage from 
Union Street and even obtained the number of the CCTV office myself. I 
asked them if there was any footage of the incident but they told me 
there wasn’t as the cameras had been pointing towards Factory Row.  
 
 

Page 30



4 
 

One of the letters of apology that I received even included a victim 
support leaflet, why would they have sent me that if they did not 
believe that I had been wronged. A WPC even told me that the Officer 
concerned had gone into the Police Station and told the desk Sergeant 
that he would likely be receiving a complaint about him.  
 
All three letters that I received stated that they apologise for any 
inconvenience caused.  
 
The first or second time that I phoned the Police I spoke with PC 6461 
Stewart, he may be able to give some more indication as to what was 
done about my complaint.  
 
GO asked PJ if the other officer in the police vehicle had been spoken to. 
 
PJ replied that he had no idea whether he had been spoken to or not, 
however, PC Stewart might be able to give more information. 
 
GO asked PJ if he could elaborate on the ‘gesticulation’ referred to in the 
Police officers’ statement. 
 
PJ advised that this must have been when he had been pointing at the 
yellow hatch box that the officer had stopped in. The Gesticulation was 
merely pointing at the box to illustrate the point. 
 
CN asked PJ if he would be able to show us the letters of apology that he 
received from the Police. 
 
PJ advised that unfortunately he had thrown them out when he moved 
home. 
 
GO asked if the reason the Police car had been stop starting was 
because there was a queue of traffic in front. 
 
PJ advised that the queue had dispersed by now and that the road in 
front of the police car was clear. There was therefore, no reason to 
keep stopping and starting. 
 

Page 31



5 
 

GO advised that he would try to obtain copies of the letters from the 
Police and to see if there was any further information that they could 
provide concerning the incident and the outcome of the complaint. 

 
7) This matter was not discussed as whilst it was printed off as a record 

from PJ’s driver history, it is not a complaint. This relates to a notification 
to the licensing authority by PJ himself relating to an altercation with a 
van driver. PJ believed that the van driver may complain about him and 
wanted us aware given the history of complaints that had been made 
about him to date. No complaint was actually received and therefore no 
investigation was made and the matter was closed. 
 

8) Complaint received in July 2017 from a member of the public which 
related to alleged dangerous and discourteous driving by PJ. An email 
was sent to PJ at the time by CN which informally warned of future 
conduct on the basis that it was one person’s word against another. This 
was explored further as part of this interview given that there have been 
other complaints both before and since. In response PJ stated: 
 
This occurred when I pulled up at the traffic lights by the Grand Hotel. I 
was stationary in the right hand lane as I intended to go straight on. 
The inside lane tends to be used mainly by vehicles intending to turn 
left. There was a car stopped next to me which, when the lights 
changed did turn left, as it did a second car drew level with me on the 
inside lane.  
 
As we crossed the lights with me remaining in the left, we approached 
a row of parked vehicles, one of which was a camper van that due to its 
size was jutting out further than normal into the road. I was in the right 
lane and clearly had right of way as my lane was clear.  
 
At this point the car to left began to beep his horn, I wasn’t really sure 
why but it now seems obvious that he expected me to give way, when I 
was a fraction in front and in the correct lane, whilst he was 
undertaking. As we approached the camper van, the car to my left 
pulled around it behind my vehicle, however, as soon as we were 
passed it, he again pulled back into the left lane and drew level with 
me. 
 

Page 32



6 
 

As he pulled level, even though the way in front was clear he decided 
to match speed for speed and started glaring across at me and 
gesticulating. I gave no reaction, but as I wanted to take the left turn 
at the next lights into Belgrave road I indicated left and slowed down 
so that he would go passed me to enable me to pull across to the left in 
readiness to turn. However, at this point the complainant also slowed 
further so as to continue matching my speed. I slowed even more and 
so did he. Eventually we came to the point where both vehicles were 
going extremely slowly, I would guess about 15 MPH and a long queue 
was now starting to form behind us. Despite my continuing to indicate 
left, the other driver would not give way. 
 
Eventually I felt I had no choice with the next set of lights approaching 
and the queue forming behind but to speed up again and pull in front 
of the vehicle that was obstructing me. This I did, by which time the 
two lanes had become three so I moved into the far left lane having 
ensured that I was clear of the other vehicle and turned left into 
Belgrave road. 
 

9) Details of a complaint received from a member of the public in 
September 2017, where the complainant alleged that PJ drove 
deliberately towards a group of School children and their teacher whilst 
they were crossing the road.  
 
The complainant stated “He (PJ) made no attempt to stop, stating that 
we need to get out of his way as he has right of way! The teacher had to 
physically push pupils to safety. Had I not moved out of the way, he 
would have continued driving into me! He then persisted to hurl abuse 
at the teacher in question and the students. He dropped his fare off and 
then came back up the street and hurled more abusive and threatening 
behaviour. He also contacted the School and was rude to the reception 
staff. He told our receptionist that he had done this before at another 
School! (Quite concerning)”. 
 
 PJ stated: 
 
I have a couple of issues with this. If I made no attempt to stop, how 
could I have stated anything? This is absolute fabrication. How would 
the complainant have possibly known that I would have carried on into 
them? 

Page 33



7 
 

I had 2 passengers in the car one of whom was running late so I was 
dropping that passenger off first and then going back with the other. 
When driving along Hingston Road you can’t drive fast because of all 
the pot holes. I was doing about 15 to 20 MPH when I saw a woman 
standing in the road facing my direction, with a group of School 
children who were crossing the road. As the last few children crossed 
she put her arm behind the last one as if to usher across. I by this time 
had slowed right down. However, she stayed in the road and so I 
stopped. 
 
Another group of School children were approaching but were not 
crossing and not ready to cross at that moment in time. The woman, 
however, remained in the road. I then said to the woman, “You are not 
supposed to block the Queens Highway, can you please move”? At this 
point she begrudgingly moved aside and I moved forward but 
exaggeratedly steered the car around her so as to give plenty of room. 
 
I dropped off my first passenger (the one who was running late) and 
went back the way I’d come. The teacher was still there and began 
pointing saying that she was going to report me. I said “what for”? To 
which she replied “for not letting the kids cross the road”.  
 
I explained that I did not have to stop and wait for children if they 
were not already crossing. The teacher would not accept this point and 
as I knew I was in the right (as I had checked the facts with another 
School in the past, where I thought a teacher was hazardous in the way 
that they ‘guarded’ their pupils as they crossed) I said I would phone 
the School in order to check on their procedures and to ensure that 
teachers were fully advised and conversant with those procedures. 
 
I phoned the School later that day and asked to speak with somebody 
who would know about the procedures for children crossing the road. 
She replied “I don’t think you’ll find that any of our teachers are at 
fault”. I asked nevertheless if I could speak with someone and she 
advised that they were all at lunch. I said “don’t bother” and put the 
phone down. 

 
 
 
 

Page 34



8 
 

10) The final matter put to PJ related to another complaint from a member 
of the public (a cyclist) which was received on 12 October 2017. The 
cyclist alleges that the vehicle driven by PJ was “driven at me with the 
drivers hand on the horn. I instantly stopped and turned round to see 
what was wrong. The car had stopped dangerously close to me”. Further 
details of the complaint are held and were put to PJ, who responded: 
 
I was stopped at the crossroads coming up Tor Hill Road by the Casino. 
I was stationary and not over the line. The cycle lane extends beyond 
the stop line for cars. I was indicating left. A bike came up beside me 
and he must have seen my indicators. When the lights changed, the 
cyclist looked behind him to see presumably what I was doing. He 
started moving off but was very hesitant and slow probably moving at 
1 MPH or thereabouts. I couldn’t turn because he was in my way and I 
had absolutely no idea which way he was going. 
 
At this point the lights went red again. The traffic going the other way 
started to move and the man behind me beeped his horn. Both my 
vehicle and the cyclist at this point were across the line and effectively 
in ‘no man’s land’ so I beeped my horn and said to the cyclist “what are 
you doing? Are you going”? He didn’t move so I pulled wide around 
him and turned left. As I went round him I heard a loud thump. I knew I 
was well clear and had not made contact so I pulled over and stopped.  
 
It was evident that the cyclist had thumped my car as I move round 
him. I said “what are you doing you just thumped my car”? The cyclist 
replied that I had hit his elbow. I told him that I had not and that I had 
it all on camera which will show him thumping my car. I told him that 
he was lucky there was no damage and to grow up. Horns were blaring 
by now, I told him that he should not be thumping people’s cars but 
because of the build-up of traffic and not wanting to cause 
unnecessary congestion I moved on.  
 
As for alleging that I ‘squared up’ I simply got out of my car to see if 
there was any damage. It was the cyclist that came over to me to ask 
what I was doing. If anything he is the one who ‘squared up’ to me. 
 
PJ was thanked for his accounts as given in response to the complaints 
received. 
 

Page 35



9 
 

CN stated that we are concerned by the numbers of complaints that we 
have received particularly over the last year. Whilst PJ has viable 
explanations for all of the matters put to him, everything seems almost 
too coincidental. CN went on to say that out of nearly 550 licensed 
drivers it always appears to be PJ who is named in the complaint. CN 
asked if PJ had any explanation as to why this might be. This was a 
question that CN felt prudent to ask given the number of complaints, it 
in no way means that the account given by PJ is disbelieved rather than 
highlighting a point in order to understand the reasons for any 
complaints made. 
 
PJ stated: 
 
It is probably because I speak out if I believe that I’m in the right. I will 
stand up for myself and voice opinion if I think someone else is in the 
wrong. Other drivers may have similar circumstances occur to them 
but if they do not speak out then maybe they don’t get complained 
about. People are quick to complain if they don’t like something and 
when I do speak out I am an easy target because my vehicle is easily 
identifiable, my number plate is easy to remember and I have a licence 
number displayed on it too. 
 
PJ accepted that by speaking out this in itself could lead to unnecessary 
confrontation. He advised that following the meeting he would make a 
concerted effort to take a few steps back and try not to become involved 
when situations arise. 
 
GO once again thanked PJ and asked if there was anything else he 
wanted to add. PJ replied that there was not. GO therefore closed the 
meeting by advising that the notes would be written up and sent to PJ in 
the first instance for approval. Once they have been agreed as a true 
account (albeit not verbatim) by PJ then a decision would be made as to 
what if any action should be taken.  
 
PJ had given an account of everything which requires possible further 
investigation and/or consideration but we would try to ensure in 
fairness to PJ that we arrive at a decision as quickly as possible and that 
this is advised to him at the earliest opportunity.  

Page 36



 

Email History in Chronological Order Following the Interview of 23 October 2017 

 

1. Gary O’Shea to Philip Johnston 

Dear Mr Johnston 

Please find attached notes for your information and agreement.  

I have not noted everything down verbatim, however, I believe that the attached gives an 

accurate and fair account of our meeting. Before I proceed to discuss with senior officers 

and make a decision on any further action I wanted you to have the opportunity of reading 

through and agreeing/suggesting any areas where you feel I may not have reflected exactly 

what you said and/or missed anything of significance. 

In view of the above, please could I ask that you read through and email me back with any 

alterations/additions. If you could do so by email pointing out in the email the page and 

paragraph relevant to your comment I’d be grateful. 

Kind regards 

Gary O'Shea 

Principal Officer - Licensing and Public Protection 

 

2. Mr Johnston Reply 

Dear sir, 

Page 5 point 8, as I crossed the lights I was in the right hand lane. The complainant was 

glaring at me, not just glancing.  

I gave my side to yourself honestly and as accurately as I could. In the meeting you 

described my explanations as "perfectly feasible" and, as they are the truth, I am upset to 

see them now described as "a bit too coincidental". I have a clean driving licence and full 

disclosure DBS and feel that I am a trustworthy person. 

Philip Johnston 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 3



3. Response by Gary O’Shea to point 2 (above) 

Dear Mr Johnston 

I have made the alterations to the notes in line with my previous email. 

Having now discussed the matter at senior level, the consensus is that it should be reviewed 

by a licensing subcommittee especially given the number of complaints received. 

I have asked our committee services officers for a date, which is likely to be week 

commencing 18th December, however, I will write to you formally to notify of the exact date, 

time and venue once I know. The letter should go out to you therefore, by close of business 

tomorrow. 

In taking this matter to sub-committee, I would point out that as officers we shall be making 

no recommendations. This will be for Members to consider the facts of the complaints, your 

explanations to them and to ask questions to clarify any points. The primary consideration of 

the Licensing Authority is public safety and a large part of this is ensuring that licensed 

drivers are (and remain to be) considered to be ‘fit and proper’ persons.  

There will be a report written, which will contain details of the complaints and your responses 

to them and a range of options as permitted in law for consideration. You will be provided 

with a copy of the report and any relevant documentation no later than one week in advance 

of the hearing. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you wish to discuss this matter further. 

Kind regards 

Gary O'Shea 

Principal Officer - Licensing and Public Protection 

 

 

4. Response to point 3 (above) from Mr Johnston 

Dear sir,  

In our meeting I was told that, in cases where it is one person's word against another without 

any independant proof, there could be no further action taken against anyone. I informed 

you that I have proof for one of the accusations against me. The police officer from a 

separate incident admitted being in the wrong.  

In your communications and at the meeting you mention speaking to your superiors about 

this matter. I should like to know who they are. In any court or legal proceedings people are 

presumed innocent until proven guilty. That is not how I feel. I have been questioned at great 

length about these matters and even though I have been completely honest I feel that my 

future rests on somebody's opinion, not the facts.  

Every person has an equal right to stand up for themself which is all I have done. I have 

already said that I would do my utmost not to allow these sort of situations to arise in future. I 

recorded the whole two hours and seventeen minutes of questioning and as you said at the 

time, every point was fully explained. 

Philip Johnston 

Page 38



5. Reply from Gary O’Shea to Mr Johnston 

Dear Mr Johnston 

We discussed the matter in detail as you state and I sent you the transcript (which you can 

check by all means against your recording) of the meeting, which was not verbatim but 

which you agreed (subject to a couple of small changes that I have subsequently made) was 

a fair reflection of the conversation that took place. 

In the introduction I advised you that referring the matter to a sub-committee was a serious 

consideration, however, no decision had been made at that time given that it was important 

to speak with you before any such decision was made. I have reproduced the relevant 

paragraphs below: 

‘Given the number and nature of the complaints, it was important that PJ was made aware of 

them and given opportunity to confirm or deny them and were applicable and appropriate to 

give explanation as to the content and circumstances of each complaint.  

On face value the number of complaints would appear to warrant an appearance at 

committee. Indeed 2 or 3 of them potentially on an individual basis leads GO to hold a view 

that committee may be the most appropriate course of action. However GO advised PJ that 

it is accepted that there are two sides to everything and that the purpose of the meeting is to 

hear any explanation and/or mitigation from PJ. On this basis GO stressed that no decisions 

have yet been made and only after the meeting would the matter be discussed/investigated 

further (as appropriate) and a decision made as to how the matters should be dealt with. 

GO explained that the Licensing Authority has a duty to safeguard the travelling public as 

whilst we are always mindful of the rights of drivers and their need to work, we have to 

consider the safety of the public as our overriding objective and in matters such as these 

consider the ‘fit and proper’ status of drivers should there be substance in the complaints.  

The purpose of this meeting was therefore to obtain any relevant account from PJ with a 

view to considering whether or not the matter should proceed to a Licensing Sub-Committee, 

or if not what if any other action should be taken’. 

Please check your recording also for the part where you state that we advised “in cases 

where it is one person's word against another without any independent proof, there could be 

no further action taken against anyone”. We certainly alluded to the fact that one person’s 

word against another made it difficult to assess further action as we certainly would not take 

every complaint received on face value. This is why you were not asked to come in after the 

first few complaints. However, so many complaints, particularly in a relatively short amount 

of time tends to build a picture, which, in the interests of public safety, must seriously be 

looked at.  

I have discussed the matter with my senior licensing officer Mandy Guy, with Craig Noble 

(who was present at the meeting), with Shaun Rackley another licensing officer and have 

made my immediate line manager, Steve Cox, aware of the situation. All are copied into this 

email. I have also revisited the accounts of some of the complainants. 

I do not believe having assessed everything that that this can simply be dealt with by letter. 

The hearing will be conducted in private session (although you may be represented or 

accompanied and the Council may, should it chose to call witnesses) and the full agreed 

transcript of our interview and details of the complaints will be provided to Members of the 

sub-committee.  

Page 39



The Sub-Committee will ask questions and would be happy to see any proof i.e. the Police 

letters that you have, particularly evidence of where the Police Officer admitted to being 

wrong and the apology letter that you said you received from the Police, or listen to any 

witnesses as may be appropriate.  

I would stress that the purpose of this hearing is not to determine any innocence or guilt 

rather than to look simply at the actions of you as a licensed driver and on the balance of 

probability to determine whether they are the actions of a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold a 

Torbay council drivers’ licence. 

The Committee have a wide range of options, which range from doing nothing to full 

revocation, however, there are options in between such as additional conditions, requiring 

you to attend a course and/or suspension. Committee will hear the matter independently of 

the licensing officers. I would again stress that no decision as to any action against your 

licence has been taken and any proof or corroboration that you can bring to the hearing will 

clearly assist you in this matter. 

It has just been confirmed that the hearing will be on the morning of 21st December, 

however, I shall write to you separately with full details. You are at liberty to be accompanied 

and/or represented by anyone of your choosing, whether legally qualified or otherwise.  

Kind regards 

Gary O'Shea 

Principal Officer - Licensing and Public Protection 

Torbay Council 

Town Hall 

Castle Circus 

Torquay TQ1 3DR 

Page 40



  

 
 

  Public Agenda Item: Yes 
   
Title: Consideration of an Application for a New Dual Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Drivers’ Licence  
  
Wards 
Affected: 

All 

  
To: Licensing Sub-Committee On: 21st December 2017 
    
Key Decision: No   
   
Change to 
Budget: 

No Change to Policy 
Framework: 

No 
 

   

Contact Officer: Gary O’Shea 
 Telephone: 01803 207631 
  E.mail: gary.oshea@torbay.gov.uk 

 

 
1. What we are trying to achieve 
 
1.1 This report asks Members to consider an application for a dual Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire drivers licence, where the applicant does not meet with the 
requirements set out in the current Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Policy, by virtue of holding a current unspent conviction and to determine on the 
facts laid before them, whether or not the Applicant is to be regarded as a ‘fit and 
proper’ person to hold such a licence.  

 
2. Recommendation(s) for decision 
 
2.1 This matter must be determined on its individual merits and any supporting facts 

or testimony. Therefore, there is no Officer recommendation. The options 
available to Members however, are highlighted in paragraph A3.1 of Annex 1 to 
this report. 

 
3. Key points and reasons for recommendations 
 
3.1 Under provision of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

(the 1976 Act), Torbay Council is the Licensing Authority in respect of Hackney 
Carriages, Private Hire Vehicles and their drivers within Torbay. 

 
3.2 Sections 51 and 59 of the 1976 Act in conjunction with section 46 of the Town 

Police Clauses Act 1847 make provision for the licensing of drivers and states that 
a district council shall not grant a licence to drive a Private Hire or Hackney 
Carriage vehicle unless they are satisfied that the driver is a ‘fit and proper’ person 
to hold a driver’s licence. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7

mailto:gary.oshea@torbay.gov.uk


  

 
3.3 Section 51 (2) of the 1976 Act permits the Council to attach to the grant of a licence 

to drive a Private Hire vehicle ‘such conditions as they may consider reasonably 
necessary’. This provision extends to enabling the attachment of conditions on a 
dual licence as is issued in Torbay.  

 
3.4 There is no prescribed test for ‘fit and proper’ laid down in legislation and it is 

therefore left to the individual Licensing Authorities to assess drivers and 
applicants under their own criteria. However, there is a wide scope for such 
assessment and certain processes have evolved over time which have stood up 
to scrutiny in the Courts and are therefore commonly accepted practices amongst 
the majority of Licensing Authorities. 

 
3.5 Torbay has adopted a number of common practices for testing the ‘fit and proper’ 

status of drivers and applicants. These include, a group 2 standard of medical 
fitness, an enhanced Criminal Records Disclosure (DBS), a driving standards test 
(DSA), scrutiny of DVLA penalty points and a test of the knowledge of both the 
area and conditions pertaining specifically to Torbay and local licensing Policy. A 
recent addition to this is the requirement to test the right to live and work in the 
United Kingdom.  

 
3.6 Section 51 of the 1976 Act (with regard to Private Hire drivers) states: 
 

(1) Subject to the provisions of this Part of this Act, a district council shall, on the 
receipt of an application from any person for the grant to that person of a licence 
to drive private hire vehicles, grant to that person a driver’s licence: 
 
Provided that a district council shall not grant a licence—  
a) unless they are satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a 

driver’s licence; or  
b) to any person who has not for at least twelve months been authorised to drive 

a motor car, or is not at the date of the application for a driver’s licence so 
authorised. 

 
(2) A district council may attach to the grant of a licence under this section such 
conditions as they may consider reasonably necessary. 

 

3.7 Section 45 of the 1976 Act gives power to the Licensing Authority to apply the 
requirements of section 51 to Hackney Carriage drivers as well as to Private Hire 
drivers. Notwithstanding this, the licence issued by Torbay is a dual licence, 
which therefore permits the holder to drive both vehicle types. 

  

3.8 This report follows receipt of an application from Ms Beverley Loader, which was 
made on 8 November 2017. In her application, Ms Loader has declared that she 
holds a current conviction where in the relevant section she has entered: 

 
 Making a false statement representation 26 April 2017 unpaid work (min hours) 

court costs £85 
 
3.9 Ms Loader did approach the Licensing Authority prior to submission of the 

application to explain about her conviction. Craig Noble, Licensing Enforcement 
Officer, advised Ms Loader that whilst she was at liberty to make an application, it 

Page 42



  

would not be one that could be granted under officer delegated powers and that it 
could be refused given the conviction and the recent date and nature of that 
conviction. 

 
3.10 There is a right of Appeal to the Magistrates’ Court as provided under section 61 

(3) of the 1976 Act against the Licensing Sub-Committee decision. Such an appeal 
must be lodged within 21 days from the date of a Notice following the decision. 

 
 
 
 
For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to the Supporting 
Information. 
 
Steve Cox 
Environmental Health Manager (Commercial) 

Page 43



  

Annex 1 - Supporting information  
 
 
A1. Introduction and history 
 
A1.1 Under provision of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

(the 1976 Act), Torbay Council is the Licensing Authority in respect of Hackney 
Carriages, Private Hire Vehicles and their drivers within Torbay. 

 
A1.2 Sections 51 (in respect of Private Hire drivers) and 59 (in respect of Hackney 

Carriage drivers) of the Act state that a district council shall not grant a licence to 
drive a Private Hire vehicle or Hackney Carriage unless they are satisfied that the 
driver is a ‘fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence’.  

 
A1.3 The test for ‘fit and proper’ as it applies in Torbay is outlined in paragraph 3.5 of 

the report. 
 
A1.4 This report follows receipt of an application from Ms Beverley Loader, which was 

made on 8 November 2017. In her application, Ms Loader has declared that she 
holds a current conviction where in the relevant section she has entered: 

 
 Making a false statement representation 26 April 2017 unpaid work (min hours) 

court costs £85 
 
A1.5 As part of the application process, Ms Loader submitted an Enhanced Certificate 

from the Disclosure and Barring service (DBS), which corroborated the declaration 
made by Ms Loader on the application.  

 
A1.6 The DBS provides the information that Ms Loader was convicted at South and 

West Devon Magistrates on 26 April 2017 for an offence which was committed on 
4 July 2014 of making a false statement to obtain benefit, which was contrary to 
section 111A of the Social Security Administration Act 1992. 

  
 The disposal for the offence was: 
 A community order until 25 April 2018 (1 Year) 
 A costs award of £85 
 Unpaid Work Requirement 
 Victim Surcharge of £85 
 Rehabilitation Activity Requirement 
 
A1.7 The Councils Hackney carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy at paragraph 7.3 

states: 
  
 Upon receipt of the enhanced DBS check, the Licensing Authority will assess 

whether any or all of the convictions and/or cautions are capable of having real 
relevance to the issue of whether or not the applicant or licensed driver is a fit and 
proper person to hold a licence. The Licensing Authority will also take into account 
any fixed penalty notices and other information, but only insofar as they are 
relevant to an application for a licence or impact on the continuance of an existing 
driver licence. In certain cases, the matter may be referred to the Council’s 
Licensing Committee for determination.  

 
 

Page 44



  

A1.8 At 7.6 the Council’s Policy says: 
 In relation to previous convictions, the Licensing Authority will have regard to the 

following: 
  

 The nature of the offence/s;  

 The age of the offence/s;  

 The apparent seriousness, as gauged by the penalty applied. 
 
A1.9 Torbay Council’s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy goes  on to 

state; 
 

In setting out its Policy, the Licensing Authority seeks to promote the following 
objectives: 

 The safety and health of drivers and the public; 

 Vehicle safety, comfort and access; 

 To prevent crime and disorder and to protect the public; 

 To encourage environmental sustainability. 
 
Public safety is paramount, and this Licensing Authority seeks to ensure through 
its licensing regime that all taxi and private hire vehicles are fit for purpose and 
that their drivers and/or operators are fit and proper persons.  

 
 
A1.10  General Policy 

 
1.1 Each case will be decided on its own merits. 

 
1.2 The Licensing Authority has a duty to ensure, so far as possible, that 

applicants are ‘fit and proper’ persons to hold licences and in the absence 
of a judicially approved definition of “fit and proper”, the Licensing 
Authority use the test of: 
 
“Would the Officer charged with the ability to grant a licence allow their son 
or daughter, spouse or partner, mother or father, grandson or 
granddaughter, or any other person for whom they care, to get into a 
licensed vehicle with the applicant alone” 
 
The wording of this test originates from Button, J. T. H. (1999), Taxis – 
Licensing Law and Practice, Butterworths, London. 
 

1.3 The overriding consideration is the safety of the public. The Licensing 
Authority has a duty to ensure so far as possible that those licensed to 
drive hackney carriage and private hire vehicles are suitable persons to 
do so, that they are safe drivers with good driving records and adequate 
experience, sober, courteous, mentally and physically fit. An aspect of this 
is the extent to which previous convictions, including but not limited to 
convictions of dishonesty, sexual offences, traffic offences, violence and 
drugs, indicate that a person is not a ‘fit and proper’ person and would not 
take advantage of passengers or abuse or assault them. 

 
 
 
 

Page 45



  

A1.11 Convictions Policy 
 

Dishonesty 
 

2.1 It is essential for the public to have trust in hackney carriage and private 
hire drivers. The practice of delivering unaccompanied property is 
indicative of the trust that business people place in licensed drivers and 
operators. However, there is scope for a dishonest driver to defraud a 
passenger by demanding more than the legal or agreed fare or by taking 
a longer route to a destination. Tourists and overseas visitors are 
particularly at risk from an unscrupulous driver. For this reason, the 
Licensing Authority will take a serious view of any offences involving 
dishonesty. The Licensing Authority will not normally consider an 
application until a period of at least three years free from convictions has 
elapsed. More than one conviction for this type of offence within the last 
five years will raise serious doubts about the applicant’s fitness to hold a 
licence. In such cases, the Licensing Authority may reject the application. 
 

2.2 In the case of a licensed driver being convicted of an offence involving 
dishonesty the Licensing Authority may refuse to renew, suspend or 
revoke the licence. If a licence is revoked, no further application will be 
considered until a period of at least three years free from the date of 
conviction of this type has elapsed. 
 

2.3 Offences of Dishonesty include: 
 
• Theft 
• Burglary 
• Fraud including benefit fraud 
• Handling or receiving stolen goods 
• Forgery 
• Conspiracy to defraud 
• Obtaining money or property by deception 
• Other deception 
• Any similar offences of dishonesty where the conviction is less than 

three years prior to the date of application 
 

A1.12 There is a right of Appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the Licensing Sub-
Committee decision. Such an appeal must be lodged within 21 days from the date 
of a Notice following the decision. 

 
A2. Risk assessment of preferred option 
 
A2.1 Outline of significant key risks 
 
A2.1.1 Under current Policy and in full consideration of the overriding requirement to 

protect the safety of the travelling public, this is a matter that Officers consider 
best suited to determination by Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee. 

 
A2.1.2 There are risks both potentially to the public and to the Council if a key decision 

were to be taken without full consideration of the facts. By placing this matter 
before a Licensing Sub-Committee, such risks are reduced as full consideration 
may be given in an open and transparent manner of all relevant facts. 

Page 46



  

 
A3. Options 
 
A3.1 The options are: 
  

(i) to grant a three year licence on the basis that Members are satisfied 
that Ms Beverley Loader is a fit and proper person to hold such 
licence 

(ii) to grant a three year (or lesser term as deemed appropriate) licence 
with additional conditions, provided that Members are satisfied that 
Ms Beverley Loader (with or without conditions) is a fit and proper 
person to hold a licence  

(iii) to refuse to grant the application on the basis that Members are not 
satisfied that Ms Beverley Loader is a fit and proper person to hold 
such licence 

 
Option (ii) would be most likely to apply where Members consider that 
circumstances were on the balance of probability such that whilst considered fit 
and proper a trial period and/or conditions would provide a means of ensuring that 
there was no repeat of any activity that may affect the decision to grant a licence. 

 
A4. Summary of resource implications 
 
A4.1 There are some resource implications if there is an Appeal to the Magistrates’ 

Court. 
 
A5. What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and 

crime and disorder? 
 
A5.1 There are no environmental sustainability issues. Any crime and disorder impact 

is best assessed by the Licensing Sub-Committee having determined the facts. If 
any potential for future crime and/or disorder on the balance of probability is 
deemed likely or possible, or if the merits of this individual case are such that 
Members do not feel it appropriate to grant at this time, then this may lead 
Members to consider whether Ms Loader meets the ‘fit and proper’ criteria. It is 
important to note however, this is not the only consideration.  

 
A6. Consultation and Customer Focus 
 
A6.1 There has been no public consultation on this matter and there is no requirement 

for the Licensing Sub-Committee to consult the public in this matter. 
 
A7. Are there any implications for other Business Units? 
 
A7.1 There are no implications for other business units. 
 
Documents available in members’ rooms 
 
None 
 

Appendices 
 
None 
 

Page 47



  

Background Papers: 
The following documents/files were used to compile this report: 
Torbay Council’s Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy 2016 
Documents supplied by the applicant, as referred to above. 

Page 48



  

 
 

  Public Agenda Item: Yes 
   
Title: Torquay Squash and Leisure Club, 78 Barton Road, Torquay 

TQ2 7NS 
  
Wards Affected: Tormohun 
  
To: Licensing Sub- 

Committee 
On: 21 December 2017  

    
Contact Officer: Mandy Guy 
 Telephone: 01803 208025 
  E.mail: Licensing@torbay.gov.uk 

 

 
1. Key points and Summary 
 
1.1 To consider and determine an application, in respect of the Premise detailed 

above, for a Variation to a Premises Licence.   
 
1.2 The application relates to all the Corporate Priorities within the Community Plan.   
 
1.3 The matters raised relate to the Licensing Objectives “The Prevention of Crime 

and Disorder” and “The Prevention of Public Nuisance”. 
 
1.4 The matter must be considered on its own merits having received details of the 

issues arising either at a hearing or by written Representations if all parties have 
agreed that a hearing is not necessary.  Having regard to the Representations and 
issues arising, a decision must be made to take such steps as are necessary for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives.  These are either:- 
(a) to modify the conditions of the licence, or  
(b) reject the application in whole or in part. 
 
For this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered 
or omitted or any new condition is added. 

 
1.5 Reasons for the decision must be given for inclusion in the appropriate Notices 

required to be served on the Interested Parties and Responsible Authorities at the 
determination of the matter. 

 
 
 

 
  

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



  

2. Introduction 
 
2.1 An application has been made under Section 34 of the Act for a Variation to a  

Premises Licence.  Details of the application are shown in Appendix 1.   Only the 
relevant pages of the application are shown.  

 
A brief description of the proposed Variation is as follows:- 
 
To extend the hours for the Sale of Alcohol on Friday and Saturday from 10.00 
until 01.00 which is an increase of an additional 2 hours at the end of the evening. 
The existing licence allows the sale of alcohol on Friday and Saturday from 10.00 
until 23.00.  The timings for the other days are to remain unchanged. 
 
To extend the opening hours as follows:-  
Friday from 7.30 until 01.30.  The existing licence is from 10.00 until 23.20 so it is 
an additional 4 hours and 40 minutes; 
Saturday from 09.00 until 01.30. The existing licence is from 10.00 until 23.20 so 
it is an additional 3 hours and 10 minutes; 
Sunday from noon until 23.30. The existing licence is from noon until 22.50 so it 
is an additional 40 minutes; 
Monday to Thursday from 07.30 until 23.30. The existing licence is from 10.00 until 
23.20 so it is an additional 2 hours and 40 minutes. 
 
The addition of 3 licensable activities.  Indoor sporting events, Live Music and 
Recorded Music from 10.00 until 01.00 on Friday and Saturday. 
 
The applicant has also requested to remove a number of conditions from the 
licence which are referred to in section L of the application form as shown in 
Appendix 1. 

 
2.2 A copy of the current premises licence showing the licensable activities, 
 timings and conditions is shown at Appendix 2 of this report. 
 
2.3 Torbay Council as the Licensing Authority is satisfied that the Applicant has met 

the administrative requirements of Section 35(1) but is unable to issue the 
variation to the Premises Licence, as relevant Representations have been 
received from Responsible Authorities. The Licensing Authority is also satisfied 
that the Representations were received within the appropriate time-scale, have 
not been subsequently withdrawn and are not vexatious or frivolous. 

 
 We have received a Representation from the Police in relation to the Licensing 

Objective “The Prevention of Crime and Disorder”. There is also an email attached 
with the Representation which is an agreement from the Licence Holder to the 
condition proposed by the Police.   This is shown as Appendix 3 of this report. 
 
We have received a Representation from Public Protection in relation to the 
Licensing Objective “The Prevention of Public Nuisance”. This is shown as 
Appendix 4 of this report. 

 
There have been no Representations received from any other Responsible 
Authority or any other Interested Party. 
 
 

Page 50



  

2.4 The Authority is required to conduct a hearing by the provisions of Section 35(3) 
unless all parties agree that this is not necessary.  

 
2.5 Appropriate Notices have been issued to all parties, as required by the Licensing 

Act 2003 (Hearing Regulations) 2005, including, where appropriate, details of the 
Representations and the procedure to be followed at the hearing. 

 
2.6 If the application is refused, in whole or in part, a Right of Appeal to the 

Magistrates’ Court is granted by Section 181 of the Act and, by Paragraph 1 of 
Schedule 5, to the Applicant. 

 
2.7 If the application is granted, a Right of Appeal to the Magistrates’ Court is granted 

by Section 181 of the Act and, by Paragraph 4(2) of Schedule 5 to :-  
(a) The applicant for the variation of the licence against any decision to modify 
the conditions  
(b) Any person who made a relevant representation in relation to the application   

who desires to contend 
(i) that any variation made ought not to have been made, or 
(ii) that, when varying the licence, the Licensing Authority ought to have 
modified the conditions of the licence or ought to have modified them in a 
different way. 

 
2.8 Following such Appeal, the Magistrates’ Court may:- 

(a) dismiss the appeal, 
(b) substitute for the decision appealed against any other decision which could 
have been made by the Licensing Authority, or 
(c) remit the case to the Licensing Authority to dispose of it in accordance with the 
direction of the Court, 

           and may make such order as to costs as it thinks fit. 
 
 
Frances Hughes 
Assistant Director (Community and Customer Services) 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1  Relevant sections of the application form. 
Appendix 2  Copy of the current Premises Licence and Plan. 
Appendix 3  Representation from the Police 
Appendix 4  Representation from Public Protection. 
 
Documents available in members’ rooms 
None 
 

Background Papers: 
The following documents/files were used to compile this report: 
 
The current Premises Licence for the above Premise. 
Torbay Council Licensing Policy 2016-2021. 

Page 51



Page 52

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 3



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 4



  

 
 

  Public Agenda Item: Yes 
 

   
Title: Licensing Act 2003 – An application for Premises Licence in 

respect of The Cabin, 13 Lucius Street, Torquay TQ2 5UW 
  

Wards Affected: Tormohun 
  
To: Licensing Sub Committee  21 December 2017 
    
Contact Officer: Mandy Guy 
 Telephone: 01803 208293 
  E.mail: Licensing@torbay.gov.uk 

 

 
1. Key points and Summary 
 
1.1 To consider and determine an application, in respect of the Premise detailed 

above, for a new Premises Licence.   
 

1.2 The application relates to all the Corporate Priorities within the Community Plan. 
   
1.3 The matters raised relate to the Licensing Objective “The Prevention of Crime and 

Disorder” and “The Prevention of Public nuisance”. 
 
1.4     The matter must be considered on its merits having received details of the issues 

arising either at a hearing or by written Representation if all parties have agreed 
that a hearing is not necessary.  A decision must be made, having considered the 
Representations, either:- 

(a) to grant the licence subject to  
(i) such conditions as are consistent with the submitted operating Schedule 
modified to such extent as the authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, and 
(ii) any condition which must under Section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the 
licence; 

(Such conditions may differ in respect of different parts of the Premises and/or 
different activities). 

(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which 
the application relates; 

(c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the Premises Supervisor; 

(d) to reject the application.  

 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



  

1.5 Reasons for the decision must be given for inclusion in the appropriate Notices 
required to be served on the Applicant and Interested Party following the 
determination of the matter. 

 
2. Introduction   
 
2.1 An application has been made under Section 17 of the Act for a Premises Licence 

to permit licensable activities at the Premise detailed above. Details of the relevant 
pages of the application are shown in Appendix 1.   

 
A brief description of the application, as follows: 
 
The Supply of Alcohol from 07.00 until 22.00 seven days a week off the premises. 
 
To be open to the public from 07:00 until 22.00 7 days a week. 
 

2.2 The Council as the Licensing Authority is satisfied that the Applicant has met the 
administrative requirements of Section 17(5) but is unable to issue the Licence, 
as Relevant Representations have been received.  The Licensing Authority is also 
satisfied that the Representations have been received within the appropriate time 
scale, have not been subsequently withdrawn and are not vexatious or frivolous. 

We have received 5 Representation from Members of the Public in relation to the 
licensing objectives “The Prevention of Crime and Disorder” and “The Prevention 
of Public Nuisance”. 2 of the Representations are against the application and 3 
are in favour of the application. These are shown as Appendix 2. 
 
There have been no Representations received from any Responsible Authority or 
any other Interested Party. 
 

 2.3 The Authority is required to conduct a hearing by the provisions of Section 18(3) 
unless all parties agree that this is not necessary. 

 2.4 Appropriate Notices have been issued to all parties, as required by the Licensing 
Act 2003 (Hearing Regulations) 2005, including, where appropriate, details of the 
Representation and the procedure to be followed at the hearing. 

 
2.5 If the application is refused, in whole or in part, a Right of Appeal to the 

Magistrates’ Court is granted by Section 181 of the Act and, by Paragraph 1 of 
Schedule 5, to the Applicant. 

 
2.6 If the application is granted, a Right of Appeal to the Magistrates’ Court is granted 

by Section 181 of the Act and, by Paragraph 2(1) of Schedule 5 to :-  

(a) The holder of the licence against any decision  
(i) to impose conditions on the licence, or 
(ii) to take any step to exclude a licensable activity or refuse to specify a 

person as Premises Supervisor. 
(b)  Any person who made a relevant Representation who desires to contend 

(i) that the licence ought not to have been granted, or 
(ii) that, on granting the licence, the Licensing Authority ought to have 

imposed different or additional conditions, or taken any step to 
exclude a licensable activity or refuse to specify person as Premises 
Supervisor. 

Page 80



  

 
2.7 Following such Appeal, the Magistrates’ Court may:- 

(a) dismiss the appeal, 
(b) substitute for the decision appealed against any other decision which could 
have been made by the Licensing Authority, or 
(c) remit the case to the Licensing Authority to dispose of it in accordance with the 
direction of the Court, 

           and may make such order as to costs as it thinks fit. 
 
Frances Hughes 
Executive Head Community Safety 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 Details of the application. 

Appendix 2 Representations from 5 Members of the Public. 

 

 
Documents available in Members’ rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Papers: 
 

The following documents/files were used to compile this report: 
 
Torbay Council Licensing Policy 2016. 

Page 81



Page 82

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 09/11/2017 Licensing Sub-Committee
	Minutes


	6 Review of a Torbay Council Drivers’ Licence
	Appendix 1 - P Johnston Complaints.pdf
	Appendix 2 - Interview Transcript.docx
	Appendix 3 - Exchange of Email Since Interview.docx

	7 Consideration of an Application for a New Dual Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers’ Licence
	8 Torquay Squash and Leisure Club, 78 Barton Road, Torquay TQ2 7NS
	21122017 Torquay Squash Club (Var) App 1.pdf
	21122017 Torquay Squash Club (Var) App 2.pdf
	21122017 Torquay Squash Club (Var) App 3.pdf
	21122017 Torquay Squash Club (Var) App 4.pdf

	9 The Cabin, 13 Lucius Street, Torquay TQ2 5UW
	21122017 The Cabin (New) App 1.pdf
	21122017 The Cabin (New) App 2.pdf


